#### September 23, 2022

#### **BY-LAWS**

# RAINTREE PLANTATION PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

#### ARTICLE I

NAME: The name of this Association shall be "Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc." hereafter "Association" and it shall be incorporated under the "General Not For Profit Corporation Act" of the State of Missouri.

#### ARTICLE II

## <u>Membership</u>

Section 1: Membership: All owners of a fee interest in "Raintree Plantation" shall upon becoming record owners of such fee interest become a member of the Association.

Section 2: Voting Rights: In all matters calling for a vote of the membership, a member shall be entitled to only one collective vote irrespective of the number of lots held by the member. If a lot is held jointly only one vote may be cast by the joint members. To vote, a member must be in good standing as of 30 days before the date for the election. "Good Standing" shall mean the member is current in all P.O.A. assessments.

Section 3: Nominations for Directors: At least sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting of the membership, the President shall cause to be published in the newsletter mailed to the membership a solicitation for the purposes of placing into nomination the names of those members desiring to fill vacancies on the Board for the upcoming Annual election. The solicitation for nominations shall state the anticipated vacancies to be filled, the terms for which those persons will serve and the closing date of the nominations. The nominations shall be in writing and either delivered or mailed to the Raintree offices to the attention of the Board Secretary. Nominations shall remain open for a period of thirty days after the newsletter mailing date or a date fixed by the Board of Directors, whichever is greater at which time all nominations shall be closed. Any member in good standing may be placed in nomination as long as they do not have a dwelling co-habitant or family member (including spouses, children, step-children, parents, siblings, uncles/aunts, nieces/nephews, cousins, grandparents, and grandchildren) who is already on the Board of Directors or is an employee of the Raintree Property Owners Association. "Good Standing" shall mean the member is current in all P.O.A. assessments when nominations are closed. Thereafter, there shall be published with the notice of the annual meeting a list of the nominated candidates for the election allowing each of those candidates the opportunity to express themselves in seventy-five (75) words or less. No other nominations shall be received from the membership body at the annual meeting nor shall any "write-in" candidate voting or the like be allowed.

#### ARTICLE III

#### Membership Meetings

Section 1: Annual Meeting: The annual meeting shall be held the third weekend in September of each year and shall be for the purpose of electing directors, receiving reports of officers and committees and for any other business that may come before the meeting. The time and place of the annual meeting shall be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 2: Special meetings of the membership may be called by the President, or Board of Directors, or as provided in Section 5 [Special Meeting] by the members. Notice shall be mailed by the secretary to each member at least ten (10) days in advance of such special meeting. Receipt of such notice by each member of the Association shall not be a condition precedent to the conduct of a valid special membership meeting.

Section 3: To establish the qualified membership for notice of a meeting, voting at the meeting and exercising any rights respecting any other lawful action, there shall be a record date for membership. The record date shall be July 1<sup>st</sup> of each year for the annual meeting. For special meetings, 30 days before the presentment date of delivery to a corporate officer (see Section 5), or if called by the President or Board of Directors 45 days before the meeting date of the Board of Directors at which the Board of Directors approves the special meeting. Receipt of this written notice shall not be a condition precedent to the conduct of a valid special meeting.

Section 4: Notice - Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall give notice consistent with these bylaws of meetings of members in a fair and reasonable manner.

Notice is fair and reasonable if Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. (1) notifies its members of the place, date and time of each annual and special meeting of members no fewer than ten, or if notice is mailed by other than first-class or registered mail, thirty, nor more than sixty days before the meeting date; (2) Notice of an annual or regular meeting includes a description of any matter or matters which must be approved by the members; and (3) Notice of a special meeting includes a description of the matter or matters for which the meeting is called.

If an annual or special meeting of members is adjourned to a different date, time or place, notice need not be given of the new date, time or place, if the new date, time or place is announced at the meeting before adjournment. If a new record date for the adjourned meeting is or must be fixed, notice of the adjourned meeting must be given under this section to the members of record as of the new record date.

When giving notice of an annual or special meeting of members, Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall give notice of a matter members intend to raise at the meeting if requested in writing to do so by persons entitled to call a special meeting, and the request is received by the secretary or\_president of the corporation at least ten days before the corporation gives notice of the meeting.

<u>Section 5:</u> Special Meeting - Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall hold a special meeting of members 1) on the call of its board or 2) when the required amount of qualified members sign, date, and deliver to any corporate officer one or more written demands for the meeting describing the purpose or purposes for which it is to be held.

To determine the number of qualified signing members necessary for the demand, (before submission to the Board), it must at least be the equivalent of 250 collective votes as provided in the By-Laws, Covenants and Restrictions of Raintree. This shall be determined by a formula as follows: for each lot or collection of lots with one vote, there shall be one qualified signature for that lot or lots, until at least the equivalent number of signatures of 250 qualified votes is reached. Additional, multiple signatures for the same lot or lots shall not be counted in the 250 qualified vote signature total.

The close of business on the thirtieth day before delivery of the demand or demands for a special meeting to any corporate officer is the record date for the purpose of determining whether the qualified signature requirement of this section has been met.

If a notice for a special meeting demanded by qualified members is not given within thirty days after the date the written demand or demands, and cost deposit are delivered to a corporate officer, regardless of the requirements of paragraph 4 of this section, a person signing the demand or demands may set the time and place of the meeting and give notice as provided in these bylaws.

A special meeting of members shall be held in Jefferson County, Missouri at the place stated in or fixed in accordance with the bylaws.

Only those matters that are within the purpose or purposes described in the meeting notice may be conducted at a special meeting of members.

Section 6: Quorum: A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting shall consist of at least one of the directors and those members who assemble at the time and place of the meeting, but no business may be transacted by fewer than 15 members, or without a director present.

Section 7: Voting procedure: All votes must be cast in person. If lots are held by a legal entity, the representative of the entity may cast its votes. In addition to exercising their voting rights at membership meetings, qualified members may exercise their voting rights for five (5) days prior to any membership meeting during regular office hours at the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. Office. At least one weekday of the five days prior to any membership meeting and the day before the annual meeting, voting hours will be extended 3 hours past normal close of business.

#### **ARTICLE IV**

#### **Directors**

Section 1: The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors of nine (9) members.

Section 2: The Board of Directors shall be elected from the membership. Before being seated as a Board member, all Board of Directors elected as of the 2012 annual meeting must sign a conflict of interest statement in such form as approved by the Board of Directors. Directors shall serve a term of three (3) years. Directors, their dwelling co-habitants, and their family members (including spouses, children, step-children, parents, siblings, uncles/aunts, nieces/nephews, cousins, grandparents, and grandchildren) cannot be employees of the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. while the Director is serving on the Board of Directors. Also, two of said dwelling co-habitants or family members may not serve on the Board of Directors at the same time. Directors shall serve until their successor shall be elected, subject to vacancy provisions contained elsewhere in this Article.

At the annual election for directors, the person receiving the most votes shall be elected for the longest available term, the person receiving the next highest votes shall be elected for the next longest available term and so on, until all of the open positions are filled.

In the event that after the election of Board members at the annual meeting a Director's position still remains unfilled, then in that event the position shall be filled by the provisions in Section 4.

Section 3: The Board of Directors shall declare vacant the office of any director who is absent from three (3) consecutive meetings without valid excuse or who falls more than thirty (30) days delinquent in assessment payments.

<u>Section 4:</u> Any vacancy occurring in the Board by resignation, disability, death, or otherwise shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors. A director elected by the Board to fill a vacancy shall serve until the next annual meeting, at which time the general membership shall elect a director to complete the remaining term of the vacant directorship.

Section 5: A regular or annual Directors meeting shall be held without other notice than these By-Laws, immediately after the annual membership meeting. A monthly Board of Directors meeting shall be held at a

place to be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors. No notice to the Board of Directors of the monthly meeting shall be required.

Section 6: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or by not less than three (3) directors. Written notice of the time and place of a special meeting shall be given not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting. The time and place of the special meeting shall be arranged so far as possible to facilitate the attendance of all directors. Attendance of a director at a special meeting shall waive the above notice requirement.

Section 7: Quorum: A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by statute or by these By-Laws. Any special issue (defined as; granting of variances; resolving architectural committee disputes, approving changes in rules, regulations, By-Laws or Restrictions; shall require approval of at least five (5) Directors present and voting.

Section 8: The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors in office, may designate one or more Committees each of which shall consist of two or more directors, which Committees to the extent provided in said resolution shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Association. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Association may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Such committees not exercising the authority of the Board of Directors may consist of such directors and/or members of the Association that the Board of Directors shall appoint.

- (i) Committee makeup shall consist of individuals from the Board of Directors for the positions of Chair and Co-Chair and may consist of Property Owners selected by the Chair and Co-Chair. Any other individuals currently on the Board of Directors attending a Committee meeting shall not vote in any Committee vote except where a vote is necessary to break a tie.
- (ii) Although more than one member of a household may serve on the same Committee, voting shall be limited to one vote per household/Property Owner just as in voting requirements for Annual Elections.

Section 9: The By-Laws of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall be amended to remove Section 9, Article IV concerning the requirement of limiting terms of members of the Board.

Section 10: The Board of Directors shall as the first item of business of each annual directors meeting elect a President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Vice-President shall preside at the Board of Directors meetings when the President is absent.

## ARTICLE V

# Report of Meeting

Minutes of all membership meetings and all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be posted in at least one (1) public place within Raintree so as to be available to all members of the Association. The Board of directors shall designate the place of posting.

#### **ARTICLE VI**

#### **Officers**

Section 1: The officers of the Association shall consist of President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer and shall be elected from the members of the Board of Directors. Officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors at the Annual Board of Directors meeting, and each officer shall serve for one year or until his successor has been elected. Officers shall be eligible to succeed themselves at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 2</u>: The Board of Directors may appoint such assistant officers from the membership as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Association.

<u>Section 3:</u> Any officer elected or appointed may be removed by a majority vote of the persons authorized to elect or appoint such officer whenever in their judgment the best interest of the Association would be served thereby.

Section 4: PRESIDENT: The president shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and shall in general, supervise and control all the business and affairs of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the members. He may sign, with the Secretary or Treasurer or any other proper officer thereto authorized by the Board of Directors any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these By-Laws to some other office or agent of the Association or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time. He shall attend all Board of Directors meetings.

Section 5: VICE-PRESIDENT: In the absence of the president or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice-president shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-President may sign, with the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or with the Treasurer such instruments which the Board of Directors may authorize to be executed, and shall perform all duties incident to the office of Vice-President and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 6</u>: **TREASURER:** The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association, from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article VII of these By-Laws. Also, in general to perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 7: SECRETARY: The secretary shall keep the minutes of the Association of the Board of Directors meetings and save in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provision of these By-Laws or as required by law; be custodian of the Association records and of the seal of the Association and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 8: VACANCY: A vacancy in any office caused by death, resignation, removal, or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors to serve until the next annual election.

Section 9: BOND: The Board of Directors may by resolution require the officers and agents of the Association to give bond to the Association in sufficient amount and with sufficient securities to secure the faithful performance of their duties, and to comply with such other conditions as the Board of Directors may from time to time require.

#### ARTICLE VII

## Contracts, Loans, Checks, and Deposits

Section1: CONTRACTS: The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of or on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. All contracts must adhere to the purchasing procedures as set forth by the Board of Directors.

Section 2: LOANS: No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Association and no evidences of indebtedness of the Association shall be issued in the Association's name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 3: CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.: All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association, shall be signed by the Treasurer, and one other member of the Executive Board. In the absences of the Treasurer, any two members of the Executive Board may sign to affirm the payment.

Section 4: **DEPOSITS:** All funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Treasurer or Board of Directors may select.

# Section 5: INFRASTRUCTURE CRISIS FUND:

- a. Annually, money is to be set aside into a separate account called the Infrastructure Crisis Fund (ICF). This money is designated for strictly major unanticipated infrastructure and equipment expenses. (Examples include: Government Mandates, Major Dam Issues, Major Road Issues, Major Building Damage, and Major Equipment Damage.)
- b. The amount of money to be set aside into the ICF account will be a minimum of 5% of the previous year's assessment income.
- c. The ICF account will continue to grow until it reaches the maximum allowable limit. The maximum allowable limit will be 1.5 times the previous year's expenses. Further contributions will only be required to reach or maintain this separate account at 1.5 times the previous year's expenses.
- d. Funds from this Infrastructure Crisis Fund (ICF) can only be spent with the approval of eight out of nine Board Member votes at a meeting of the Board.
- e. The ICF funds cannot be used to purchase real estate or cover general expenses.

# <u>ARTICLE VIII</u>

# **Enforcement of Restriction and Regulations**

The Board of Directors shall have the authority to enforce the Covenants and Restrictions applying to Raintree Plantation. No member of the Board of Directors, in his or her official capacity, shall take, or fail to take, actions adverse to the directives voted upon and authorized by the members of the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. The Board of Directors of the Association shall have the power and authority to make and publish rules and regulations governing the use of any or all facilities of any type owned commonly by the lot owners. The Board of Directors shall establish a procedure for the receipt of information relating to

violations of the Covenants and Restrictions and any violation of the rules and regulations. The Board of Directors shall establish a hearing procedure for the information to be brought to attention of the alleged violator. This hearing procedure shall include a provision for due notices to the alleged violator and the other residents of Raintree Plantation.

#### **ARTICLE IX**

#### Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Association shall be for such period of twelve (12) months as the Board of Directors shall designate by resolution.

#### ARTICLE X

#### **Seal**

The seal of the Association shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association and shall be in such form as shall from time to time be adopted by the Board of Directors.

#### **ARTICLE XI**

## Acceptance of Grantor's Responsibility

The Board of Directors of the Association shall, if they deem it in the best interest of the Association and members of the Association accept any grant or assignment of grantor's rights and obligations under the Covenants and Restrictions applicable to the subdivision covered by the Association. Such acceptance shall be evidenced by resolution of the Board of Directors though the officers of the Association shall exercise such rights and fulfill such obligation for the best interest of the subdivisions and members of the Association.

## ARTICLE XII

## Compensation

No compensation shall be paid to the Board of Directors or to the officers of the Association for their services rendered to the Association as an officer or director.

## ARTICLE XIII

# Parliamentary Authority

Compliance with Roberts Rules of Order Revised is suggested in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with those By-Laws or the Statutes of the State of Missouri. Further, the provision of the "Missouri Sunshine Law", Missouri Statutes, Chapter 610.010-610.035 RSMo as amended are incorporated in these By-Laws by reference, so that the conduct of all the corporate business and Board meetings shall be conducted as required of Missouri quasi-public governmental bodies. For all lawful purposes, the Raintree Plantation Property Association, Inc. shall be considered a "quasi-public governmental body", as if it were included in the definition of that term in Section 610.010.RSMo. The Board of Directors shall have access to an electronic or hard copy of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association By-Laws, Covenants and Restrictions, as amended, Rules Manual, and Robert's Rules of Order Revised.

#### ARTICLE XIV

#### **Amendments**

These By-Laws may be altered, amended, or repealed by a majority vote cast pursuant to Article II, Section 2.

It is therefore resolved that Article 14 of the By-Laws of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. be amended by adding the following language to said Article 14.

Amendments to the By-Laws of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. and to the Covenants and Restrictions covering lots in Raintree Plantation Subdivision, including Raintree Forest, shall only be submitted to the membership for formal voting by written ballot under the following circumstances:

- 1. When the Board of Directors of said Association calls a special meeting or at an annual meeting submits, in writing, a resolution and ballot setting forth the amendment to be voted on, and no amendments or changes to said resolution shall be permitted at said meeting since the membership will have written ballots to only approve or disapprove the resolution and amendment as suggested by said Board.
- 2. Said amendments may also be initiated pursuant to Article 3, Section 5, of the existing By-Laws. However, if an amendment of said By-Laws or Restrictions is sought pursuant to Article 3, of Section 5 and the Board does not also approve of said amendment, then no notice of the meeting or meetings will be set to consider said amendment until such time as there is posted with Board of Directors of the Association by those requesting said special meeting, sufficient funds to defray all costs of said notification of special meeting, printing of ballots and all other costs necessary for the holding of said meeting. If the amendments are approved by the membership at said special meeting, all funds so advanced shall be returned to those owners causing the calling of said meeting. If the amendments are not approved by the membership at said meeting, then the funds so provided shall be used to reimburse the Association for the expenses of said special meeting.
- 3. This resolution submitted for approval at Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. special meeting, February 10, 1984.

Revised 9/23/2022

# AMENDED COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS COVERING LOTS IN RAINTREE PLANTATION SUBDIVISION

(This document is meant for information purposes only. See Jefferson County Recorder's Office for the official record.)

WHEREAS RAINTREE PLANTATION, INC. has caused surveys to be made and filed for the record in Recorder's Office of Jefferson County, Missouri, to property known as RAINTREE PLANTATION, section number One through Nineteen and Raintree Forest, all of said property being located in Jefferson County. Missouri, and

WHEREAS, additional subdivisions will be platted and recorded from time to time, and

WHEREAS, the following restrictions shall be subject to proper enforcement clauses. Deeds to all lots in said subdivisions shall be subject to the following covenants and restrictions, which shall run with the land and bind all subsequent owners.

#### 1. RESTRICTIONS RELATING TO THE USE OF LOTS.

1a. All lots in the subdivision shall be used for residence purposes only; and no business of any nature shall be permitted, maintained or conducted thereon. Only one residence shall be placed on any lot, and such residence shall not be designed, converted or used for more than one family. No clubs, fraternities or organizations of any nature may own, use or operate from any building and/or lots in subdivisions, except Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. It is the clear intent of these restrictions to limit lot usage to that of a single-family dwelling. Where a lot is titled in more that one non-resident family name, one family shall be designated with Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., a primary family and the use of amenities, access and facilities under the control of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall be limited to those primary families so designated. If no designation is made, the first listed person on the title shall be presumed designated.

1b. No signs of any nature, business or otherwise, except the identifying name of the home or owner may be displayed. In addition to identifying signs, real estate sale signs shall be permitted to be placed on the front side of lots with homes no more than 15 feet from the front of the house. In addition, lots without homes may post real estate sale signs at least 10 feet back from the road. Signs must be standard size, not to exceed 24" x 24" and contain both company logo and agent name. Property may have not more than one sign placed in the yard unless that property is lake front or directly on the golf course, and may be displayed only during the time the property is listed on the market.

1c. No lot, portion of a lot, residence nor portion of a residence (individually or collectively referred to as "the premises") shall be leased or rented for any purpose by the owner. Said premises shall not be used for camping or any unlawful purpose, or for any purpose that would injure the reputation of the neighborhood. Nor shall any noxious, offensive or odoriferous substances be permitted on any lot. In the event that an owner shall neglect his lot, thereby permitting it to become an eyesore or nuisance, as determined by the Board of Directors, then the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., may at its discretion remove rubbish, debris and the like from the lot to remedy the eyesore and nuisance. The owners of a neglected lot shall be charged with the reasonable expense so incurred by the Association which shall be a lien upon the owners' land in the subdivision until satisfied. Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., its officers, agents, or employees shall not be deemed guilty or liable for any manner of trespass or damage for any abatement, removal or the like.

- 1d. Said premises shall not be used to house or maintain horses, cattle, mules, hogs, sheep, goats, or poultry; however, house pets are permitted but not over two (2) of any kind of pets will be permitted. Pets must be confined to the owner's property either physically or electronically or on a leash at all times. When walking pets, residents are required to pick up and properly dispose of pet feces. Jefferson County rules and regulations respecting animals and pets shall apply to all pets in Raintree.
- 1e. RAINTREE SUBDIVISION is hereby declared to be a bird sanctuary. Therefore hunting, and discharge of firearms, shall not be allowed within the limits of these subdivisions, and are hereby specifically prohibited.
- 1f. All vehicles operated on any lot in the subdivision or on any Subdivision Road, Easement or Common Area shall be licensed and operated by a validly licensed operator. All-terrain vehicles as defined in the Missouri Statutes and dirt motorcycles (both commonly referred to as "off road" vehicles) and motorized scooters either gas or electric shall not be operated on any lot in the Subdivision or on any Subdivision Road, Easement or Common Area. Operation of Golf Carts (a "golf cart" means a motor vehicle that is designed and manufactured for operation on a golf course for sporting or recreational purposes and that is not capable of exceeding speeds of twenty miles per hour. (See S304.034(3)) on any subdivision Road, Easement or Common Area shall be permitted with the following conditions: the Golf Cart must be operated by a licensed driver and the Golf Cart must be covered by a liability insurance policy. In addition to these Covenants, the operation of Golf Carts is also subject to any rules and regulations as set forth by the Raintree POA Board of Directors in the Rules Manual.
- 1g. All vehicles, trailers and the like, owned possessed or operated in Raintree Plantation Subdivision shall meet State of Missouri licensing regulations at all times.

1h. Only personal watercraft, as defined in the Missouri statutes, such as Wave Runners, Jet Skis, and Sea Doos, that are registered with the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. in the form required by the Board of Directors by December 31, 2002 will be allowed to continue to operate on Autumn Lake in Raintree. Nevertheless, if Autumn Lake is at full pool, meaning that water is passing over the spillway not created by boating activities, then all boating on Autumn Lake shall be restricted to "no Wake" until the pool level recedes. The POA exclusively shall reserve the right to determine full pool condition and take reasonable steps to notify the members during those conditions by at least posting the lake condition at the POA headquarters. Registered personal watercraft must operate according to the boating regulations and time limitations as set out in the regulations of the Property Owners Association and the laws and regulations of the State of Missouri.

Effective January 1, 2003, no additional, previously unregistered personal watercraft will be allowed to be registered or operated in Raintree subdivision. Effective January 1, 2016, personal watercraft must be continuously and consecutively annually registered with Raintree POA. A failure to continuously and consecutively register that watercraft with Raintree Subdivision shall cause a forfeiture of the right to obtain a permit on the personal watercraft in the future. No airboats, fan boats or similar propeller-type vessels of any kind are permitted on any lake in Raintree Subdivision.

Boats/vessels that are registered with the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall not exceed 24' (feet) in length. Pontoon boats are excluded from the length limit. Previously approved and registered boats over 24' (feet) in length, which are currently registered prior to September 15, 2013 with the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. will be allowed to continue to operate on all lakes in Raintree. All registered boats/vessels must operate according to the boating regulations and time limitations as set out in the regulations of the Property Owners Association and the laws and regulations of the State of Missouri. All watercraft as described in this section must be covered by a

liability insurance policy yearly and said policy must be presented at time of purchasing the watercraft sticker. The use of bladders, ballasts, bags, or any device used for the purpose of increasing weight, enhancing wake, or creating additional wake, whether permanent or temporary, by any boat is strictly prohibited. Boaters must minimize "plowing" (maintaining speed between idle and plane which creates the largest wake.)

1j. All vehicles operated within Raintree must display a property owner's identification or identification as set forth by the Raintree POA Board of Directors in the Rules Manual. Owners shall request that their guests comply with this and all other restrictions, covenants and regulations.

# 2. RESTRICTION RELATING TO BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION.

2a. The Architectural Control Committee shall be established and controlled by the Raintree Plantation Property Owners' Association, Inc., or it successors and assigns. All plans and specifications must be approved by the Architectural Control Committee before building operations are started including but not limited to lot preparation for construction, road cuts, utility hookups or the like. There shall be no restrictions as to the cost of any residence, building or structure, but complete plans and specifications must be submitted for the approval of the Architectural Control Committee.

All building and construction in Raintree Plantation shall require a building permit issued by the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. The Board of Directors may, at their discretion, establish a regulatory policy to set the fee for the permit but same shall not exceed \$8,500 per individual home, divided between a maximum of \$5,000 from the Property Owner and \$3,500 to be paid by the Builder for the road cut repairs. The fee must be submitted in cash or equivalent to the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc.'s business office prior to the start of construction on any lot and the RPOA shall retain a portion of such bond permit, not to exceed \$3,000 for the Property Owner portion, to be placed in the general revenue funds for the purposes of assisting in the funding of capital improvements for the infrastructure such as roads, culverts, bridges, etc., affected by construction and refund the balance of such \$5,000 bond. In addition, the RPOA shall retain a portion of the builder portion of the bond permit, not to exceed \$1,000 if the road cut is done satisfactorily or \$3,500 if the RPOA has to make the road cut repairs, to be placed in the Roads fund for the purpose of repair of road crossing cuts and other damage to Raintree roads.

Any owner, owning multiple lots shall comply with this requirement irrespective of the number of deposits, which have already been secured with the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc.'s business office.

- 2b. In determining whether or not to approve plans submitted, the Architectural Control Committee may, but is not obligated to consider all factors including, but not limited to, the practical, aesthetic, legal, financial and environmental effect any structure will have on lots or buildings in the entire development and in its vicinity, and whether it complies with the general plan or concept of the subdivisions as advertised or represented to other property owners.
- 2c. The Architectural Control Committee, or its successors and assigns, prior to approving plans and specifications shall require evidence that the residence to be constructed shall be equipped with off street parking suitable to handle two full sized automobiles so as to provide sufficient parking for two automobiles off of the streets or drives in the subdivision and the plans for the said two car parking space musts be approved as part of the items approved in accordance with these restrictions prior to the time that building operations are started. All driveways and off-street parking referred to in this paragraph shall be durably paved except as to secondary parking. All secondary parking pavement materials to be approved by Architectural Control Committee.

- 2d. All residential buildings must have a minimum heated living area of 1,550 square feet, excluding porches, garages and basements, (of which at least 1,350 square feet must be on the main floor) unless otherwise approved by the Architectural Control Committee. All square footage measurements relative to this paragraph shall be based upon exterior measurements.
- 2e. All driveway culverts and any changes to a natural drainage ditch must be approved by the Architectural Control Committee and all shall be designed to comply with any standards set forth by the Architectural Control Committee.
- 2f. All fences other than those ornamental in nature are prohibited in the subdivision except upon specific approval of the Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. An ornamental fence or retaining wall may be placed on the rear of any lot after approval of the Architectural Control Committee so long as same does not interfere with any other lot owners' views or impair the aesthetic appearance of the subdivision. No fence shall be placed on a vacant lot. Any fence, retaining wall or other structure to be erected in front of the building on any lot shall have prior approval of the Architectural Control Committee of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc.
- Control Committee. No house or attached structure shall be constructed closer than twenty-five (25) feet from the front property line, ten (10) feet from the side lines, nor be any closer than thirty (30) feet from the back property line, except in the section known as Raintree Forest/Section 50, where no residence shall be constructed any closer than fifty (50) feet from the front property line, fifteen (15) feet from the side line and fifty (50) feet from the back property line. No building shall be constructed closer than twenty-five (25) feet from any street unless otherwise approved by the Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. If one individual owns more than one adjoining lot he may elect to consider all of his property as one lot for construction purposes only under this paragraph, provided the owner thereof has followed the procedures set forth in the subdivision regulations of Jefferson County for legally merging the two lots into one. The assessment of any original lot that is split shall be prorated to the adjoining owners by the percentage of area they acquire following the lot split.

2h. The Board of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. shall have the power to grant a variance to yard setback line encroachment, when the strict application of any building covenant or regulation would result in peculiar or exceptional difficulties owing to exceptional narrowness, shallowness, shape of topography, or other extraordinary or exceptional situation or condition relating to a specific piece of property.

It is intended by the membership that variances should only be granted for the purposes of alleviating hardship and that cost is not a hardship.

The following definitions shall apply to the covenants:

Variance – A procedure by which the Board acting in adjustment may modify, alter, or relax the requirements of the Covenants and Restrictions as to yard setback lines, where such action will not be contrary to the public interest and where owing to the conditions peculiar to the property and not the result of actions or situations of the owner, a literal enforcement of the covenants and restrictions would result in an unnecessary and undue hardship.

Yard – An open space at grade, other than a court or plaza, between a structure and the adjacent lot lines, which are unoccupied except for structures permitted by the covenants.

2i. Construction of boat docks or outbuildings shall be permitted on lots within Raintree Subdivision, subject to approval by the Architectural Control Committee and within guidelines established by the

Property Owners Association Board of Directors. In addition to an off-street parking area suitable to handle two full size automobiles, all residential buildings shall have a two car garage attached to or built in as a part of the residence. In the section known as Raintree Forest/Section 50 an additional garage A variance may be may be detached if approved by the Architectural Control Committee (ACC). granted by the Architectural Control Committee if only one car garage will fit on the lot. A homeowner may build an additional detached garage on an adjacent lot provided that the home owner has performed a boundary line adjustment to attach the adjoining lot to the residential lot. The detached garage shall be no greater than 900 sq. ft, and no less than 400 sq. ft., and it must be connected with a pathway to the residence. The plans for the detached garage must be approved by Architectural Control Committee, and they must meet Jefferson County construction codes. Effective 12/31/2021 a property owner of any property in Raintree Plantation property with a residential house located thereon, may be approved for construction of a shed no greater than 100 square feet, properly anchored to a concrete floor, with color and materials matching the house on the same property; said shed must be located behind the main house, within the sidewalls of the house, and within the 30-footsetback. The shed must be approved by the ACC including submission of a deposit. ACC will follow the inspection process detailed in these restrictions.

2j. No residence shall be wholly or partly covered with tar paper or canvas, and no tent house or shack shall be permitted on any lot. No unpainted wooden houses shall be on any lot unless of log or imitation log construction as approved by the Architectural Control Committee. No auto trailer, movable house or manufactured housing (as defined by the Jefferson County Zoning Code) shall be allowed on any lot in the subdivision. All foundation walls and footings must be of continuously poured concrete on the building site. Trailers, boats, personal watercraft, RV's or the like, shall not be parked or stored in front of a residence or on Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. roads or property, aside from the following exceptions: Trailers, boats, personal watercraft and RV's or the like may be parked on the driveway of a residential lot (that being the most direct paved connection between the public road and the dwelling) as nearly as practical to the dwelling. Trailers, boats, personal watercraft, and RV's or the like may also be parked in specifically designated areas of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association roads or property. In no event shall such items be stored in any way that creates a nuisance, hazard or eyesore, as determined by the Board of Directors. Any unlicensed vehicle must be inside the owner's garage and shall not be permitted to remain on any part of the lot. Vehicles, licensed or unlicensed, shall not be parked on lawns.

2k. No storage tanks shall be above the ground on said lot, except a propane tank limited in size to 250 gallons and used solely for outdoor grills or indoor gas fireplaces.

21. All toilets, baths, sinks, lavatories, water systems, sewers and drains on said premises shall be properly installed. No wells or individual sewage treatment system shall be permitted. Roof, yard and surface drains including sump pumps with uncontaminated water shall not discharge into the sanitary sewage treatment system.

2m. All buildings and landscaping must be completed within nine (9) months from the time of the beginning construction ("beginning construction" shall be construed as no longer than three (3) months after plan approval), with a total limit of (12) months to obtain an occupancy permit.

- 2n. No wells shall be drilled, nor any blasting done, nor any substantial changing of the grade on any lot without the written permission of the Architectural Control Committee.
- 20. Anyone aggrieved by an Architectural Control Committee decision may prepare a written statement that sets out the aggrieved parties position and facts that support that position. This statement must be delivered to the Secretary of the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., within fourteen (14) days of the original disapproval date. The Architectural Control Committee shall review the statement at its next meeting.

If after review of their written statement, the Architectural Control Committee disapproves the plans of the aggrieved parties, then they may appeal the disapproval of the Architectural Control Committee to the Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. The Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., shall have authority to reverse, amend or approve the decision made by the Architectural Control Committee. Any appeal shall be in writing, setting forth the position of the aggrieved parties and any facts that support that position. The appeal must be delivered to the Secretary of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. within thirty (30) days of the second disapproval date. The Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., shall promptly dispose of the appeal at a regular meeting. At that meeting the aggrieved parties may appear and give a brief oral statement. The decision of the Board of Directors of Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., shall be final.

2p. Sewer hookup fee shall be purchased from the utility company and verification given to the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. business office prior to starting construction on a home site.

#### 3. RIGHTS AND POWERS.

- 3(a) Enforcement. The rights of Owners to use the Common Area, facilities and amenities of the Subdivision, and the authority and procedures for enforcement of the provisions pertaining to those areas contained in the Covenants and Restrictions, and Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. ("POA") Rules and Regulations (collectively referred to herein as the "Governing Documents") and corresponding rights of the Owners, are provided in this Subsection 3(a).
- (1) Owners' Right to Use Common Areas. Each Owner, in "good standing" shall have a non-exclusive right, license and easement, together with all other Owners, and their respective families, to use the common ground of the Subdivision, including the roads, lakes, beaches, and all other common areas and facilities of the Subdivision (collectively referred to as the "Common Areas") for purposes including but not limited to boating, bathing, fishing, and use of the beaches and any parkway surrounding said lakes, the mooring of boats in front of said parkway, and use of parking areas at said lakes and beaches, and travel over the public easements, all of which shall be subject to the authority to enforce violations contained in this Subsection 3(a).
- (2) Relief, Attorney's Fees. If any person subject to the Governing Documents fails to comply with any provision thereof, the POA or any Owner or class of Owners adversely affected by such failure has a claim for appropriate relief, including but not limited to claims at law for damages and claims for equitable relief, including injunction. Punitive damages may be awarded in the case of a willful, wanton and malicious failure to comply with any provision of the Governing Documents.

The prevailing party shall in addition to any other amounts, be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses incurred in enforcing or defending the Governing Documents, whether by judicial or administrative proceeding, or by alternative dispute resolution procedures.

(3) POA's Enforcement Authority. In addition to any other remedy at law or equity provided in the Covenants and Restrictions, the POA, acting through the Board, may:

- (i) Levy a Censure Assessment (Censure Assessment as used in this section shall mean an assessment subject to lien against the Owner's land, directly related to violation of covenants, restrictions or rules and regulations), after notice and opportunity to be heard, for a violation of the Governing Documents in such amount as the Board deems reasonable and in keeping with its predetermined published violation grid, taking into account the nature, duration, and other circumstances of the violation, but not to exceed \$1000.00 for the violation and not to exceed \$50.00 per day or per incident that the violation continues after notice and opportunity to be heard. Any unpaid Censure Assessment shall be additive to annual assessments and be enforceable in the same manner as other assessments under these Covenants and Restrictions,
- (ii) In all areas, owned by the Association, or under its direct supervision, tow or cause to be towed any automobile, truck, boat, trailer, golf cart, all-terrain vehicles, "4-wheeler" or other vehicle, that is not permitted in the Subdivision or is parked in an unauthorized location or manner, and any boat that is not moored or is not used in an authorized manner, at the cost of the violating Owner. The Board may post signs at the lakes, beaches, and parking areas, and on the roads, to regulate parking and traffic.

Any Owner who owns a golf cart, boat or other vehicle (excepting passenger cars, pickup trucks, minivans, SUVs, etc.) for which a policy of liability insurance is required must register the golf cart, boat or other vehicle with the Association and receive a registration sticker issued by the Association. Such sticker must be displayed prominently on the vehicle driver's side lower front windshield, or the golf cart lower left windshield, or boat right rear starboard side.

- (iii) Abate a violation of any restriction of the Governing Documents, after notice and opportunity to be heard (unless the violation presents an imminent threat to health and safety of the Owners) by removing or causing to be removed any article, sign, or other object, at the cost of the violating Owner,
- (iv) Record a notice of violation, including unpaid Censure Assessments, against the Lot of any Owner in violation of any provision of the Governing Documents, at the cost of the violating Owner,
- (v) In addition to the authority granted the Board under this paragraph (3) of this subsection 3(a), no Owner may vote, serve as Director, or utilize the facilities or amenities, if he or she (a) is not a Member in Good Standing or (b) has a violation of the Governing Documents that remains uncorrected after notice and opportunity to be heard, and
- (vi) Adopt as provided in this section and the By-laws of the POA reasonable rules and regulations to implement the authority set forth in this Subsection 3(a),
- (vii) Establish, by approval vote of seven (7) of nine (9) of the Board members, at a meeting of the Board the dollar amounts to be used in the violation grid for the Censure Assessments which can be levied by the Board.
- (4) Hearing Panel and Procedure. Any hearing required under Section 3(a) (3) shall be conducted by a panel of three (3) disinterested Owners, who shall be Members in Good Standing appointed by the Board (the "Hearing Panel"). The Board may designate the Hearing Panel as a standing committee and appoint its members to specified terms, or appoint the members on an ad hoc basis as the need arises. The Hearing Panel, by a majority vote of its members and within ten (10) days after the hearing, shall prepare a written advisory report with recommendations to the Board as to whether the proposed enforcement action should be ratified, modified, or reversed, and shall consider the provisions of Section 3(a)(5) in its deliberations. The advisory report of the Hearing Panel shall be part of the hearing record. The Board after consideration of the Hearing Panel's advisory report shall notify the alleged violator of the Board's final decision, in writing and within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the recommendations of the Hearing Panel, setting forth the Board's decision. The Board shall adopt reasonable rules and procedures to foster a fair and impartial hearing.
- (5) Discretion in Enforcement. The decision to pursue enforcement action in any particular case shall be left to the Board's discretion, except that the Board shall not be arbitrary or capricious in taking

enforcement action. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, the Board may determine that, under the circumstances of a particular case:

- (i) The POA's position lacks sufficient strength to justify taking any or further action; or
- (ii) The covenant, restriction or Rule being enforced is, or is likely to be construed as, inconsistent with applicable law; or
- (iii) Although a technical violation may exist or may have occurred, it is not of such a material nature as to be objectionable to a reasonable person or to justify expending the POA's resources; or
- (iv) That it is not in the POA's best interests, based upon hardship, expense, or other reasonable criteria, to pursue enforcement action.

Such a decision shall not be construed as a waiver of the right of the POA to enforce such provision at any other time under other circumstances or preclude the POA from enforcing any other covenant, restriction or Rule.

The POA, by contract or other agreement, may enforce applicable local governmental ordinances, and permit the local governmental authorities to enforce its ordinances within the Subdivision for the benefit of the POA and Owners.

- 3b. Title to parkways, walkways, roadways, dams and all other commonly used property shall be in Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., subject to the easement and appurtenances in the owners of the lots in said subdivision and amenities owned by an independent corporation.
- 3c. RAINTREE PLANTATIONS, INC. reserves unto itself the right to grant or assign to any individual, corporation or organization all or part of its rights as Grantor.
- 3d. The term Grantor, shall mean RAINTREE PLANTATION, INC. or any corporation, organization or individual that RAINTREE PLANTATION, INC. conveys and grants all or any it powers as Grantor.
- 3e. A fifteen (15) foot wide utility easement on each side of each lot is reserved for the purpose of bringing public services to the land being developed, including typical water, sewer, electric and telephone lines. A twenty (20) foot wide easement is reserved on the part of all lots facing or next to a road to install drainage facilities for the purpose of bringing public services to the land being developed, including but not limited to pipes, ditches, basins or devices to control or drain storm watches.
- 3f. The Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. on July1, 2001 and annually thereafter, shall have the right to assess the owner of each lot such sum as it shall deem proper. The funds raised by said assessments shall be used for the improvement, betterment, upkeep and maintenance of the development, including the amenities, lakes, dams, roads, park or other properties which are of use to the property owners in Raintree Subdivision. Said fund can also be used for the purchase of property, both real estate and personal, the payment of salaries and fees, and purchasing of any sort of materials, services, or any other item that the trustees may deem useful for the development known as Raintree Plantation. Through the 2021 assessment billing period, no assessment on any lot in excess of \$205.00 per year per platted lot in Sections One through 25 (\$365.00 per year per lot for residents) and \$300.00 per year per platted lot (\$475.00 per year per lot for residents) in Raintree Forest, condominium owners shall pay \$102.50 per unit; Effective 7/1/2022 General Assessments of all Raintree Plantation property shall be increased as follows:
  - 7/1/2022 5\% increase over current assessment
  - 7/1/2023 5% increase over 2022 assessment
  - 7/1/2024 5% increase over 2023 assessment

- 7/1/2025 5% increase over 2024 assessment
- 7/1/2026 5% increase over 2025 assessment

7/1/2027 and each year thereafter - Increase of the cost of living during the previous calendar year. This calculation shall be made by adding to the then current assessment amount the percentage by which the level of the Consumer Price Index for the St. Louis, Missouri Metropolitan Area, as reported by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor, has increased over its level as of January 1st of the prior year, not to exceed 2%. The amount billed each year shall be rounded to the nearest dollar for each Property Owner.

Except for these adjustments, no assessment shall be made unless it shall be approved by a majority vote of the lot owners voting as hereinafter set forth in said assessment, and provided further that the assessment as levied each year shall be and become a lien without a filing or suit or legal procedure to establish said lien on said lot if not paid within thirty (30) days after July 1, of the year in which the assessment is made.

In the event that a lot owner has two or more adjacent lots and is granted a "Boundary Line Adjustment" by Jefferson County government, effectively combining the original lots into an adjusted lot, and upon submission of the governmental approval to the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. business office, the owner shall be entitled to a reduction of 47% of the assessment of each of those lots adjoined to the first lot, into a single adjusted lot, effective 7/1/2021 and beginning the next July 1st after a purchase or merger.

Said assessment may be collected by suit, and by enforcing a special lien on said property. All delinquent assessments shall accrue a penalty of 1% per month compounded annually, which penalty may be collected and enforced the same as assessment. All delinquent assessments referred to a collection agency or attorney for collection, shall in addition to interest, have added to the outstanding balance, all costs of collection (either percentage or otherwise), attorney fees and costs of litigation, which may likewise be collected and enforced the same as provided herein.

3g. The Board may submit a proposal for a Special Assessment to the Owners when there is a need for additional funds to preserve common property or to protect the interests of the community which shall be voted on pursuant to the methods set forth in Paragraph 4b. Voting may be at the annual meeting or a special meeting.

The proposed Special Assessment shall identify the dollar amount, period of time and use of the proposed Special Assessment. Any and all Special Assessment funds shall be held in a separate designated account and shall only be used for the specific purpose.

Upon approval by the membership, the Special Assessment shall be due no later than 90 days after written notice of said Special Assessment. Collection enforcement for non-payment of special assessments shall be the same as those for annual assessments under these Covenants and Restrictions.

### 4. METHOD OF MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF RESTRICTIONS.

- 4a. These restrictions including assessments may be amended, removed, abrogated or modified in anyway or by a vote of over fifty percent (50%) of the votes cast pursuant to the methods set forth in paragraph 4b, of these restrictions. Conclusive evidence of said approval shall be by document executed by the Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc., and filed for record in the Recorders' Office of Jefferson County, Missouri.
- 4b. All of the owners of a fee interest in a lot in these subdivisions or in any other subdivisions or condominium development created in the vicinity thereof or adjacent thereto by the Grantor herein, or its assign, shall upon becoming a record owner of such a fee interest become a member of the Property Owners' Association and have only one (1) collective vote irrespective of the number of lots held by the

member, to be cast in all matters requiring a vote. All votes must be cast in person. If lots are held by a legal entity only the designated representative of the entity may cast its vote. To vote a member must be in good standing as of 30 days before the date for the election. "Good standing" shall mean the member is current in all P.O.A. assessments. The vote may be cast among other things on such matters as assessments, amending, altering or deleting the restrictions, or electing trustees or Board of Directors of the Property Owners Association and approving and amending By-Laws of any such Property Owners Association. All such voting must be done in person, and no proxy voting will be permitted, and if more than one individual owns any lot, only one vote may be cast. It is clearly understood that any water and sewer system or Golf course or Club facility that may be installed shall not be subject in any way to the provisions of these restrictions, except as they provide for easements for such utilities, same shall be owned independently by private corporations.

- 4c. All lot owners have a non-transferable right to, and shall be deemed social members of any country club or golf course constructed on property heretofore owned by RAINTREE PLANTATION, INC., subject to their payment of dues and user charges. Such membership can be modified or terminated by the owner or governing body of the Club or Golf Course. No dues schedule termination or modification shall be reviewable by any Court or Government Agency. Annual dues as established solely by such Club or Golf Course may be collected by Grantor and turned over to the Club or Course. If any lot owner fails or refuses to pay said dues, all lots owned by the individual will lose all rights to be a member. In addition, all unpaid and delinquent dues presently set at \$120.00 shall be treated as unpaid assessments and shall become a lien on said lot and enforceable the same as unpaid assessments with any penalties as provided herein.
- 4d. These restrictions are enforceable by Raintree Plantation Property Owners Association, Inc. or its assigns or by any other lot owners or Lessee in the subdivision.

#### 5. RESTRICTIONS RELATING TO TRASH COLLECTION.

- 5a. To promote the general welfare at Raintree, reduce road damage and solid waste expense, Raintree Property Owners Association requires universal solid waste collection and authorizes the Board of Directors to contract with one or more contractors for collection of single family residential solid waste and recyclable waste.
- 5b. Solid waste is unwanted or discarded waste materials in a solid or semisolid state, including but not limited to garbage, rubbish and the like.
- 5c. All residential solid waste shall be stored in containers. Containers shall be leakproof, waterproof, and fitted with a fly-tight-lid and shall be properly covered at all times except when depositing waste therein or removing the contents thereof. The containers shall have handles, bails or other suitable lifting devices or features. They shall be of sturdy construction. If the trash hauler company does not provide a container which has been approved by the Property Owners Association Board of Directors, the following containers may be used; galvanized metal containers or rubber, fiberglass, or plastic containers which do not become brittle in cold weather. Other trash containers must be approved by the Property Owners Association Board of Directors.
- 5d. The Board shall provide the collection of all residential solid waste at Raintree by contracting with a person, corporation, county, or city or combination thereof, for all of Raintree as deemed to be in the best interest of Raintree. No owner shall have the right to separately contract with any waste hauler to remove residential solid waste in Raintree.

- 5e. Solid waste collectors, employed by Raintree or solid waste collection agency operating under contract with Raintree, are hereby authorized to enter upon private property for the purpose of collecting solid waste therefrom as required by the restriction. Solid waste collectors shall not enter dwelling units or other residential buildings for the purpose of collecting residential solid waste.
- 5f. No person shall engage in the business of collecting, transporting processing or disposing of solid waste within Raintree, without first obtaining an annual permit thereof from the Association; provided, however, that this provision shall not be deemed to apply to employees of the holder of any such permits.
- 5g. The Raintree Property Owners Association shall have the right to bill every homeowner for solid waste removal.

RAINTREE PLANTATION, INC.

Rev. 9/23/2022

: :			
	•		
			•
	·		
:			
!			
į.			
i			